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NOTICE 

Notice hereby given that the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the company will be held on 
Wednesday, 28th September 2022 at 11:30 A.M. at the registered office of the company 
situated at Dinalipi Bhawan, A-54/1 & A-55/1, Nayapalli, Baramunda, Bhubaneswar-751003, 
Odisha., to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

Item No.1- Adoption of Financial Statements: 
 
To consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2022 including statement of Profit and Loss and Cash flow Statement along 
with notes on Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2022 along with the reports of the 
Auditors and Board of Directors thereon. 

Item No. 2- Re-appointment of Mrs. Annapurna Dash (DIN: 00586755), director 
liable to retire by rotation: 

To re-appoint Mrs. Annapurna Dash (DIN:00586755) as the Director of the Company, who 
retires by rotation and is eligible and offers herself for re-appointment. 

Item No. 3 – To appoint M/s. Sanjit Mohanty & Co, as the Statutory Auditor of the 
Company: 

To consider and if thinks fit pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:  

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time, 
M/s. Sanjit Mohanty & Co, Charted Accountants, (FRN No. 328858E) be and is hereby 
appointed as Statutory Auditor of the company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual 
General Meeting up to the conclusion of the 38th Annual General Meeting to be held in the 
financial year 2026-27 at such remuneration as may be agreed upon between the board of 
directors and the Statutory Auditor.  

By Order of the Board 
For: Suryo Foods & Industries Limited 

 
Date: 10.08.2022 
Place: Bhubaneswar 
 

Sd/- 
Manisha Satapathy 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
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NOTES: 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and the proxy so appointed 
need not be a member of the Company. 
 

2. The instrument appointing a proxy, duly completed, should be received not less than 48 
hours before the commencement of the meeting at the registered office of the Company in 
order to make the proxies effective. A person appointed as proxy shall act on behalf of not 
more than fifty members and hold in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total 
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten 
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

 
3. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the Annual General Meeting is 

annexed. 
 

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting 
are requested to send a certified copy of the Board resolution to the Company, authorizing 
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

 
5. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder, who is higher in order 

of names, will be entitled to vote. 
 

6. Members can inspect proxies lodged with the Company during the period from 24 hours 
before the meeting to the conclusion of the meeting by giving notice, in writing, at least three 
days in advance. 

 
7. Members/proxies/authorized representatives should bring the duly filled attendance slip 

enclosed herewith to attend the meeting. 
 

8. The register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained 
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the 
members at the AGM. 

 
9. The business set out in the Notice will be transacted through an electronic voting system and 

the Company is providing a facility for voting by electronic means. Instructions and other 
information relating to e-voting are given in this Notice under Note No. 16. 

 
10. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 

September 22, 2022, to September 28, 2022. (Both days inclusive) 
 

11. SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 08, 2018 and further 
amendment vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 2018 
and as per Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies 
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can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 1st April, 2019, except in 
case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. However, it is 
clarified that, members can continue holding shares in physical form. Transfer of shares in 
demat form will facilitate convenience and ensure safety of transactions for investors. 

 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their 
holdings in the dematerialized form to eliminate the risk of associated with physical shares. 
The Members who are desirous to convert their physical holdings into dematerialized form, 
may contact Depository Participant of their choice in this regard. In case of transmission of 
shares held in physical mode, it is mandatory to furnish a copy of the PAN Card of the legal 
heir(s)/ Nominee(s). 
 

12. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital 
and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Members holding shares in physical form may file nomination 
in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company’s RTA. If a member desires to cancel the 
earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he may submit the same in Form SH-14. 
In respect of shares held in demat form, the nomination form may be filed with the 
respective DP. 

 
13. Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to intimate all changes 

pertaining to their bank details, NECS, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of 
address/name, PAN details, email ID, etc. to their Depository Participant only and not to the 
Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agents. Changes intimated to the Depository 
Participant will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s records which will help the 
Company and its Registrars and Share Transfer Agents to provide efficient and better service 
to the Members. However, the members who hold shares in physical form may write to the 
RTA, Niche Technologies Private Limited at3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 
7B, Kolkata – 700 017, Tel.:033 2280 6617/18, Email: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com. 

 
14. To support the ‘Green Initiative’ and for receiving all communication (including Notice and 

Annual Report) from the Company electronically, the Members who have not yet registered 
their email addresses are requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are 
held by them in electronic form and with the RTA in case the shares are held by them in 
physical form. 

 
15. The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report is being sent by electronic mode to 

those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories 
unless any member has requested a physical copy of the same. For members who have not 
registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies are being sent by the permitted mode. The 
Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report will also be available on the Company’s 
website: www.suryofoods.com. 
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16. Instructions and other information relating to remote e-voting are as under: 
 
I. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 
as amended and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company is pleased to provide to its members’ 
facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be passed in the meeting 
by electronic means. The members may cast their votes using an electronic voting system 
from a place other than the venue of the meeting (‘remote e-voting’). 

 
II. The facility for voting through a ballot paper system shall also be made available at the 

venue of the meeting and the members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote 
by remote e-voting shall be able to vote at the meeting through the above voting system. 
 

III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may also attend the meeting 
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 
 

IV. The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL) as the Agency to provide an e-voting facility. 
 

V. The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. Saroj Roy & Associates, Company Secretaries 
(Bhubaneswar) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and voting through 
ballot paper at the meeting in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit, 
not later than 2 days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of 
the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company or a person 
authorized by him in writing, which shall countersign the same and declare the result of 
the voting forthwith. 
 

VI. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 
website <www.suryofoods.com>, and on the website of CDSL. The same will be 
communicated to the listed stock exchanges viz. <Bombay Stock Exchange where shares 
are Listed. 
 

VII. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of 
beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as of the cut-off date i.e. September 21, 
2022, only shall be entitled to avail of the facility of remote e-voting or voting by ballot 
paper at the meeting. 
 

VIII. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up 
equity share capital of the Company as of the cut–off date of 21st September 2022. 
 

IX. The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as of the cut–off date 
of 21st September 2022. The facility of e-voting would be provided once for every 
folio/client id, irrespective of the number of joint holders. 
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X. Since the Company is required to provide members the facility to cast their vote by 

electronic means, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or 
in dematerialized form, as on the cut–off date of 21st September 2022 and not casting 
their vote electronically, may only cast their vote at the Annual General Meeting. 
 

XI. Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of the Notice 
/ Email and hold the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 12th August 2022 are requested to 
send the written/ email communication to the Company at 
<suryofoods.industries@gmail.com> by mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID 
to obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-voting. 
 

XII. Institutional Members / Bodies Corporate (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are 
required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / 
Authority letter, etc. together with an attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory (ies) who are authorized to vote, through e-mail at 
<sraconsultants@gmail.com> with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com on 
or before 27th September 2022 up to 5.00 pm without which the vote shall not be treated 
as valid. 
 

XIII. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under: 
 

i. The remote e-voting period will commence on 25th September 2022 (10.00 am) and will 
be ended on 27th September 2022 (05.00 pm). During this period members of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as of the 
cut-off date of 21st  September 2022 may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote 
e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a 
resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently. 
 

ii. LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING: 
 
Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of 
individual shareholders holding shares in Dematerialized mode. 
 
In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 
9,2020, on the e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in Dematerialized mode are allowed to vote through their Demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their Demat accounts in order to 
access the e-Voting facility. 

 
Pursuant to the abovesaid SEBI Circular, the login method for e-Voting for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Dematerialized mode CDSL/NSDL is 
given below: 
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Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Dematerialized 
mode with 
CDSL 
Depository 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / 
Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi/Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the 
information provided by the company. On clicking the e-Voting option, the 
user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also 
links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from an e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLoginThe system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded 
in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option where the e-Voting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 
Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 
the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-
Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see the e-Voting page. 
Click the  on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
re-directed to the e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or 
click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 
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3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of the e-Voting system is launched, click on the 
icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit 
demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP, and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see the e-Voting page. 
Click on the company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 
(DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  
After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on 
e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period. 

   
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll-free 
no. 1800 22 55 33  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll-free no.: 1800 1020 
990 and 1800 22 44 30   
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Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in 
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode. 

(i) Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders 
other than individual holding in Demat form. 

 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
3) Now enter your User ID  

 
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company. 
 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 
 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders 

holding shares in Demat. 
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
 
¶ Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number 
sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 
OR Date 
of Birth 
(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 
¶ If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please 

enter the member id/folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 
(ii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
(iii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by 
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are 
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eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
 

(iv) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(v) Click on the EVSN for Suryo Foods and Industries Limited on which you choose to vote. 
 

(vi) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same, 
the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. Option YES 
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 

 

(vii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details. 

 

(viii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else 
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 
 

(ix) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote. 
 

(x) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on 
the Voting page. 
 

(xi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and 
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted 
by the system. 
 

(xii) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be 
made available to the scrutinizer for verification. 
 

(xiii) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For 
Remote Voting only. 

 

¶ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians 

are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the 

“Corporates” module. 
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¶ A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should 

be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

¶ After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin 

login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which 

they wish to vote on. 

¶ The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in 

case of any wrong mapping. 

¶ It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney 

(POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in 

PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

¶ Alternatively Non-Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant 
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with the attested specimen signature of 
the duly authorized signatory is are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the 
Company at the email address viz; sraconsultants@gmail.com and 
suryofoods.industries@gmail.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded 
same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE 
NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 
email to suryofoods.industries@gmail.com/nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com. 

2. For Demat shareholders, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 
respective Depository Participant (DP)  

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with 
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining 
virtual meetings through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll-free no. 1800 22 55 33 

 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to 
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 
25thFloor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), 
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call at toll free 
no.1800 22 55 33. 
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(ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE FOR THE 33rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY TO BE 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 28th September, 2022AT 11:30 A.M. AT DINALIPI BHAWAN A-54/1& A-55/1, 
NAYAPALLI, BHUBANESWAR, ODISHA- 751003). 
 
Name & Registered Address of Sole/First named Member :  
Joint Holders Name (If any)     : 
Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID     :   
No. of Equity Shares Held    :  
 
Dear Shareholder, 

Subject: Process and manner for availing E-voting facility: 

Pursuant to Provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 
2015 and Regulation 44 of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Companyis pleased to provide E-voting facility to the members to cast their votes electronically 
on all resolutions proposed to be considered at the 33rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held on Wednesday, 28th 
September, 2022 at 11:30 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at: Dinalipi Bhawan, A-54/1 & A-55/1, 
Nayapalli, Bhubaneswar, Odisha-751003.  

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) started “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance”, which provides for 
paperless compliances by companies through electronic mode. In the spirit of this initiative the Notice is being sent 
through e-mail to the members who have registered their e-mail-IDs.  This facility is being provided through CDSL e-
voting platform. Please read the instructions given in the Notice for voting through the e-voting platform. 

Please click on the following link to view Notice along with Attendance Slip cum Proxy Form for the 33rd Annual General 
Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on 28th September, 2022.  

Notice of 33rd AGM-SURYO FOODS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Please also click on the following link to view Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year Ended 31st March, 
2022.  
www.suryofoods.com 

Annual Report for the F.Y. 2021-22-SURYO FOODS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 
Notice and Annual Report shall also be available on the website of the Company i.e. www.suryofoods.com  and the 
physical copies may be procured from the Company’s Registered Office at Dinalipi Bhawan, A-54/1 & A-55/1, Nayapalli, 
Bhubaneswar, Odisha-751003.  

The Electronic Voting Particulars are set out below: 
 
EVSN(E-Voting Sequence Number) User  ID PAN / Sequence No. 

220822010   
The E-voting facility will be available during the following voting period: 

Remote e-Voting Start On Remote e-Voting End On 
Sunday, 25th September 2022 from 10:00 a.m. (IST) Tuesday, 27th September 2022 till 05:00 p.m. (IST) 

 
Members, who have been sent this Notice and Annual Report electronically and want to avail the Annual report 
physically, may send a request to the Company (SURYO FOODS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED) at 
suryofoods.industries@gmail.com for obtaining the physical copies of ‘AGM Notice’ and/or “Annual Report”. 
 
In case of any queries or issues regarding e-voting, manual is available at www.evotingindia.com under help section 
or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact CDSL e-voting helpdesk at 18002005533. 
 
Looking forward to your participating in the process. 

                                                                                                    By Order of the Board 
       Suryo Foods & Industries Limited 

Date: 10.08.2022                                            Sd/- 
Place:  Bhubaneswar                                  Manisha Satapathy 

        Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
Encl: AGM Notice/Attendance Slip/Proxy Form. 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

SURYO FOODS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

Dear Members, 
 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 33rd Annual Report on the business and 
operations together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ending 31st March, 2022. 
The performance of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 is 
summarized below: 
 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 
The summarized financial results of our Company for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 
2022 are detailed hereunder: 

     (Amount in ‘000’ Rs.) 

 
Note: Previous year’s figures are regrouped wherever necessary. 
 

2. SUMMARY OF OPERATION: 
 
During the financial year the company has no revenue from operation as like the previous year. 
The Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 36,45,000/- as compared to the previous year’s loss of 
Rs. 72,50,000/-. The depreciation charged during the year is Rs. 23,99,000/- as compared to 
previous year of Rs. 21,94,000/-. 
  

 Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
a) Revenue from Operations (net) - - 

b) Other Income/Gain (Losses) 453 1,074 
c) Total Income 453 1,074 
d) Less- Expenses 4,098 8,324 
d) Profit/Loss before exceptional items and Tax (3,645) (7,250) 
e) Less- Exceptional Items - - 
f) Profit/Loss before Tax (3,645) (7,250) 
g) Provision for Tax - - 
 Current Tax - - 
 Deferred Tax 187 (220) 
h) Profit/Loss after Tax (3,832) (7,030) 
i) Proposed Dividend - - 
j) Transfer to General Reserve - - 
k) Earnings Per Share (Basic & Diluted) (0.97) (1.78) 
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3. STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY: 
 
During the financial the company has not done any operational activities. The Directors of the 
Company are putting their best effort not only to regain the operations of the company but also 
to improve the performance of the company by keeping the interest of the stakeholders as well 
as customers and society as a whole. 
 

4. DEPOSITS: 

The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year ended 31st March, 
2022. 

5. DIVIDEND: 

As during the financial year, the Company has incurred loss and the Company is also having 
accumulated losses, so the Board of Directors of your Company has not recommended any 
divided, for the financial year . 

6. TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE: 

During the financial year ending on 31st March 2022, the Company does not propose to transfer 
any amount to the General Reserve.  

7. DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTORS: 

(i) Declaration by Independent Directors 

The Company has received necessary declaration from all the independent Director. 

Under Sec 149(7) of Companies Act 2013, that they meet the criteria of independence laid 
down under section 149(6) of Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 25 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The declaration of Independence was submitted by all the Independent Directors. 

(ii) Disclosure of Interest by the Directors 

All the Directors have disclosed their interest in other entities, as required under the 
provisions of Section 184 (1) of the Companies Act 2013, read with rule 9(1) of the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, in Form No MBP-1. 

(iii) Disclosure of Disqualification by the Directors 

All the Directors of the Company has given the declaration that they are not disqualified to 
act as Director of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section 164 (1) of the 
Companies Act 2013, read with rule 14(1) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rule, 2014. 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22                                                      SURYO FOODS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 Page 16 
 

 

8.  CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY: 

 There was no change in the nature of Business of the Company. 
 

9.  PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 

During the year under review, the Company has not made any loans, guarantees or investments 
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

10. SECRETARIALSTANDARDS: 
 
During the year under review the Company has complied with the Secretarial Standard on 
Meetings of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2). 

11. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

The Annual Return of the Company, pursuant to sub-section 3 (a) of Section 134 and the 
provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 for the financial year 2021-22 in the Form MGT-7 has been uploaded on Company's 
website. 
 

12. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 
As required by Regulation 27(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the report on corporate governance & the Certificate of the auditor’s is 
enclosed as an annexure to the Board’s Report in Annexure-A. 
 

13. STATUTORY AUDITORS, THEIR REPORT AND NOTES TO FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS: 
 

As per the provisions of Section 139 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there 
under the terms of office of the statutory auditors M/s. Sanjit Mohanty & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 328858E) is going to be expired at this Annual General 
Meeting and as per the provisions of Section 139 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and theyare 
eligible to be re-appointed. So in compliance with this, the Board of Directors has recommended 
the re-appointment of M/s. Sanjit Mohanty & Co., Chartered Accountants, Bhubaneswar (Firm 
Registration No.: 328858E), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company and recommended the 
same for the approval of Members for a period of 5 (Five) financial years i.e. from the conclusion 
of 33rdAnnual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 38thAnnual General Meeting. 
 
M/s. Sanjit Mohanty & Co. have consented to their appointment as Statutory Auditors and have 
confirmed that if appointed, their appointment will be in accordance with Section 139 read with 
Section 141 of the Act. 
 
There are no qualifications, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer made by the statutory 
auditor in his report. 
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14. COST AUDIT: 

As per the provision of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014, Cost Audit was not applicable 
to the Company during the Financial Year . 

15. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

M/s. Saroj Ray and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries was appointed to conduct the 
Secretarial Audit of  the Company for the Financial Year as required under Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules there under. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year  
forms part of the Annual Report as Annexure to the Board Report in Annexure-B. 
 

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remark or disclaimers made by the secretarial 
auditor in the Secretarial Audit report. 

Further in compliance with the regulation 24A of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Circular 
No. CIR/CFD/CMDI/27/2019 dated 08.02.2019 issued by SEBI, M/s. Saroj Ray and Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries has issued the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the 
Financial Year which is annexed in the board report in Annexure-C. 

The Board has re-appointed M/s. Saroj Ray and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as 
the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year. 

16. INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

M/s. AASA & Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountants was appointed as the Internal 
Auditor of the Company to conduct the Internal Audit for the Financial Year as required under 
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules there under. The Board has re-appointed M/s. 
AASA and Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditor of the Company 
for the Financial Year 2022-23. 

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO: 

The particulars as prescribed under sub-section (3)(m) of 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 the Conservation of Energy, Research and Development, 
Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo is ‘NIL’ during the year. 

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

During the financial year, the company has entered into transactions with related 
parties at an Arm’s Length basis. The details of the related party transactions are 
mentioned in AOC-2 which is attached to the board’s report in Annexure-D. 

19. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE, OR ASSOCIATES: 

There is no Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associates of the Company. 
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20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES COMMITTEE:  

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as our 
Company is not coming under the Criteria as stipulated under the Section 135(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

21. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:  

The Company did not have any funds lying as unpaid or unclaimed amount for a period of seven 
years. Therefore the Company is not required to transfer any funds to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

22. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAS OCCURRED BETWEEN 
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT: 

There are no such material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
company from the date of closure of accounts up to the date of the Board report. 

23. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL: 

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business including adherence to the Companies Policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial disclosure. 

24. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

The Board is of the opinion that, risk is an inseparable element from business which may 
threaten the existence of the Company so adequate measures have been taken to minimize the 
quantum of risk element. 
 

25. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS: 

There are no significant and Material order passed by the regulator or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 
 

26. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the financial year under review, as stipulated under 
Regulation 27(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is presented in a separate section as Annexure-E forming 
part of the Annual Report. 
 

27. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:  
 
During the financial year, following disclosures are required in respect of following employees: 
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Sl.
No 

Employee  
Name Designation 

Remuner
ation 
received 

Qualificati
on 

Age 
(in 

years) 

Date of 
commencement 
of employment 

1 
Mr. Bikash 
Kumar 
Sahoo 

Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

2,30,000 MBA 38 12.11.2019 

2 

Ms. 
Manisha 
Satapathy 

Company 
Secretary and 
Compliance 
Officer 

2,40,000 
 
 
 
 

Company 
Secretary 
 

29 
 
 
 
 

20.09.2019 
 
 
 
  

 
28. SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE: 

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the 
requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints 
regarding sexual harassment. 
 

All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.  
 
During the year under review, no complaints were received by the internal committee, pursuant 
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. 
 

29. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN 
PERFORMANCE AND ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS: 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 the 
Board of Directors has undertaken an evaluation of its own performance, the performance of its 
Committees, and of all the individual Directors based on various parameters relating to roles, 
responsibilities, and obligations of the Board, the effectiveness of its functioning, the 
contribution of Directors at meetings and the functioning of its Committees. The directors 
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process: 
 
 

30. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 
134 (3) (C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 
issued thereunder and in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as modified by SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 
dated 05th Jul, 2016.  
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The Directors confirm that: 
 

(a) In the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2022, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation 
relating to material departures; 

(b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit and loss of the company for that period; 

(c) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting record in accordance with the provisions of the act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 

(f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively; 

31. Details of application made or proceeding pending under Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code 2016. 

 During the year under review, there were no application made or proceeding pending in the 
name of the Company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016. 

32. Details of Difference between valuation amount on one time settlement and 
valuation while availing loan from Banks and Financial Institutions.: 

 During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of loans taken from Banks 
and Financial Institutions. 

Acknowledgement: 
 

The Directors would like to acknowledge and place on record their sincere appreciation to all 
stakeholders’ clients, Bank, Central & State government, the company’s valued investors and all 
other business partner for their continued co-operation and excellent support received during 
the year.  

For and on behalf of the Board 
Suryo Foods & Industries Limited 

 
 

                                                   Sd/- 
Date: 10.08.2022                 Amarendra Dash 
Place: Bhubaneswar   Chairman cum Managing Director 
                                                                                              DIN: 00583036 
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ANNEXURE-A 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance: 

 
Your Company believes that good corporate governance is a key driver of sustainable growth 
and long-term value creation for all stakeholders. Corporate Governance is a journey for 
constantly improving sustainable value creation and is an upward moving target and your 
Company has been doing its business within the framework of good Corporate Governance. It is 
the mechanism to ensure, adopt and practice transparency, and accountability, developing an 
internal system encompassing policies, processes and people which serves best interest of the 
stakeholders by directing and controlling the management activities with good business law, 
objectivity and integrity. This emanates from our strong belief that strong governance is integral 
to creating value on a sustainable basis. Sound corporate governance is reliant on external 
market place commitment and legislation including a healthy board culture which safeguards 
policies and process and enhances the value system of the Organization. Hence, your Company 
believes in implementing the system of good corporate governance, as it is the key driver for 
sustainable growth and long-term value addition to the investments made by all shareholders.  
 
Your company endeavor to adopt best governance practices. Our commitment is reflected in the 
steps that we have taken to ensure compliance of law and by regularly reviewing the systems and 
procedures. Your Company constantly strives to achieve enhancement of shareholders’ value 
and effective utilization of resources to realize long term goals. 

2. Board of Directors: 
 
A fundamental requirement of Board membership is independence, knowledge and experience 
based upon the absence of relationships and interest that could compromiseor could be 
perceived as compromising the ability of a Director to exercise judgment in the best interests of 
the Company. 
 

 2.1 Composition 
The Board of Directors of the Company is Comprised of Six directors viz. Chairman & Managing 
Director (Executive Chairman and director) and five non-executive directors as on 31.03.2022. 
Out of the Five Non-Executive directors, Three Directors are Independent Directors namely Mr. 
Bata Krishna Tripathy, Mr. Rama Kant Rath, & Mr. Rajendra Nath Mishra. In terms of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, at least half of the Board should comprise of non-Executive Directors, where 
the chairman of the Board is non-executive director, at least one-third of the Board should 
comprise of independent director and in case Chairman is Executive Director, at least half of the 
Board should comprise of independent director. Asper the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board is 
classified broadly as follows: 
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Sl 
No Name of the Director Status Category 

1. Mr. Amarendra Dash Chairman & Managing 
Director 

Promoter and 
Executive Director. 

2. Mrs. Annapurna Dash Director 
Non Executive & 
non- independent 
Director 

3. 
 Mr. Ajay Kumar Dash Director 

Non Executive & 
non- independent 
Director 

4. Mr. Bata Krishna Tripathy Director Non Executive & 
Independent Director 

5. Mr. Ramakanta Ratha Director Non Executive & 
Independent Director 

6. Mr. Rajendra Nath Mishra Director Non Executive & 
Independent Director 

 

All the independent directors of the Company furnish a declaration at the time of their 
appointment and also annually as well that they qualify the condition of their independence as 
laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Board’s Definition of Independent Director: 

Independent directors shall mean Non-executive director of the company who: 

a) apart from receiving director’s remuneration, does not have any material pecuniary 
relationships or transactions with the company, its promoters, its senior management or 
its holding company, its subsidiaries, and associated companies; 

b) is not related to Promoters, Chairman, Managing director, whole-time Director, 
Secretary, CEO or CFO and of any person in the management at one level below the 
board; 

c) has not been an executive of the Company in the immediately preceding three financial 
years; 

d) Is not a partner or an executive of the statutory audit firm or the internal audit firm that 
is associated with the company and has not been a partner or an executive of any such 
firm for the last three years. This will also apply to legal firm(s) and consulting firm(s) 
that have a material association with the entity; 

e) Is not a supplier, service provider or customers of the Company. This should include 
lessor-lessee type relationships also; and 

f) Is not a substantial shareholder of the company i.e. owning two percent or more of the 
block of voting shares. 
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Separate Meeting of Independent Directors: 

The Listed Company needs to conduct atleast one meeting in a year wherein Independent 
Directors can evaluate the Board, Independent Directors individually, Committees as well as the 
Board procedures of the Company. All Independent Directors met separately on 22nd March, 
2022 without the presence of Non-Independent Directors. 

Code of Conduct: 

The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for all Directors, Senior Management and 
employees of the Company. This Code is derived from three interlinked fundamental principle, 
viz good corporate governance, good corporate citizenship and exemplary personal conduct. 
Further, all the Board members and senior management personnel (as per Regulation 27(2) of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have affirmed 
compliance with the respective Code of Conduct. 

Board Meetings & Procedures:    

The Board meets in executive session at least four times in a year at quarterly intervals and more 
frequently if deemed necessary, to transact its business. Information and data that are 
important to the Board’s understanding of the business in general and relating to matters tabled 
for discussion. The agenda and relevant enclosures are distributed to the members of the Board 
sufficiently in advance of the meeting. Sensitive material, however, is presented for discussion at 
the meeting only. The meetings of the Board of Directors are generally held at Company’s 
registered office at Bhubaneswar and are generally scheduled well in advance. 

2.2 Numbers & Dates of Board Meetings held during the year. 
 

(i) During , the Board of Directors met 4 times on the following dates: 
 

Sl No. 
 

Date of Board Meeting Total Members Attendance by 
number of 
members 

1. 30th June, 2021 6 4 

2. 11thAugust, 2021 6 6 
3. 13th November, 2021 6 4 
4. 14th  February, 2022 6 5 

 
(ii) The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings, last Annual General 

Meeting and the number of other Directorships and Chairman/Memberships of 
Committee are as follows. 

 
Name of the Director Attendance Particulars Total no of 

Directorship in 
Companies As 
on 31.03.2022 

 

No of Board 
Meetings 

Entitled to 
Attend 

No of the 
Board 

Meetings 
attended 

Last AGM 

Mr. Amarendra  Dash 4 4 Present 9 

Mrs. Annapurna Dash 4 3 Present 8 
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Mr. Ajay Kumar Dash 4 2 Present 4 

Mr. Batakrishna Tripathy 4 2 Present 1 

Mr. Ramakant Rath 4 4 Present 3 

Mr. Rajendra Nath Mishra 4 4 Present 1 

 

3. Committee of Board 

The Board has constituted various committees for smooth and efficient operation of the 
activities and is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and fixing the term of 
reference of the committees in line with the laws of land. The draft minutes of the proceedings of 
each committee meeting duly initialed by the Chairman of the respective committee meeting are 
circulated to the members of that committee for their comments and thereafter, confirmed by 
the respective committee in its next meeting. The Board also takes note of the minutes of the 
meetings of the committees duly approved by their respective Chairman and material 
recommendations/decisions of the committees are placed before the Board for approval. The 
Board has approved the chairman, quorum and the terms of reference of each committee. 

(a) Audit Committee: 

The Primary objective of the Audit Committee of the company is to monitor and provide 
effective supervisions of the management’s financial reporting process with a view to ensure 
accurate, timely and proper disclosures and transparency, integrity and quality of financial 
reporting.         

The Audit Committee met 4 times during the year 2021-22. The composition and attendance of 
the committee are given below: 

Composition: 

Name of Director Designation Status 
Mr. Ajay Kumar Dash Chairman Non-Executive and Independent Director 
Mr. Batakrishna Tripathy Member Non-Executive and Independent Director 
Mr. Ramakant Rath Member Non-Executive and Independent Director 
Mr. Rajendra Nath Mishra Member Non-Executive and Non-Independent 

Director 
 

Attendance: 
 

Sl. No. Date of Meeting Total Members Attendance by Members 
1. 30th June, 2021 4 2 
2. 11thAugust, 2021 4 4 
3. 13th November, 2021 4 2 
4. 14th  February, 2022 4 4 
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Audit Committee Charter: 
a) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient, and credible. 
b) Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, and removal of the 

external auditor, fixation of audit fee, and also approval for payment of any other 
services. 

c) Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the 
Board, focusing primarily on: 
¶ Any change in the Accounting policies and practices. 
¶ Major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by the management. 
¶ Qualification on draft Audit Report. 
¶ Significant adjustments arising out of audit. 
¶ The going concern assumption. 
¶ Compliance with accounting standards. 
¶ Compliance with Stock Exchange and legal requirements concerning financial 

statements. 
¶ Any related party transactions i.e. transaction of the company of material nature, 

with promoters or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc that may 
have potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. 

d) Reviewing with management, external and internal auditor, adequacy of internal 
controls systems. 
 

e) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal 
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 
frequency of internal audit. 

f)    Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

g) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board. 

h) Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences on the nature and scope 
of audit as well as has post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

i)    To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 
creditors. 

j)    To approve un-audited Quarterly Financial Results and publish the same as required in 
the Listing Agreement. 

The meetings of the Audit Committee were also attended by Internal Auditor, Accounts 
Executive of the company and representatives of the Statutory Auditors as invitees for the 
relevant meetings. The recommendations of audit committee are usually accepted and 
implemented by the Board. 

Audit Committee and Establishment of Vigil Mechanism: 

The Audit Committee is over sees the vigil mechanism of the Company, the committee overseas 
the genuine concerns established by the employees and other Directors. The Company has also 
provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express 
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their concerns. The company has also provided direct access the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee to discuss their concerns and grievances. 
 
(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee of the company shall be to discharge the Board’s 
responsibilities relating to remuneration of the Company’s Executive Directors. The committee 
has overall responsibility for approving, evaluating and recommending plans, policies and 
programs relating to remuneration of Executive Directors of the Company. 

The Committee consists of only independent and Non- executive Director and the said 
committee constituted as per Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee met onetime during the year 2021-22. The composition and 
attendance of the committee are given below: 
 

Composition: 
 

Name of Director Designation Status 

Mr. Bata Krishna Tripathy Chairman  Non Executive and Independent Director 

Mr. Ramakant Rath Member Non Executive and Independent Director 

Mr. Ajay Kumar Dash Member Non Executive and Non Independent Director 
 
Attendance: 

Sl. No. Date of Meeting Total Members Attendance by Members 
1. 11th August, 2021 3 3 

 
(c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
The “Stakeholders Relationship Committee” comprising of independent & Non- Executive 
Directors. The functioning and terms of reference of the Committee, inter-allia, approves issue 
of duplicate certificates, observes and reviews all matters connected with securities transfers. 
The Committee also looks into redressing of investor’s grievance pertaining to transfer/ 
transmission of shares, dividends, dematerialization/rematerialization, replacement of 
lost/stolen/mutilated share certificates, splitting, conversion and other related issues and to 
strengthen investor relation, complaints like non-transfer of shares, non-receipt of declared 
dividends, etc. 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committeemet 4 times during the year 2021-22. The 
composition and attendance of the committee are given below: 

Composition: 
Name of Director Designation Status 

Mr. Bata Krishna Tripathy Chairman Non Executive and Independent Director 

Mrs. Annapurna Dash Member Non Executive and Non Independent Director 
Mr. Rajendra Nath Mishra Member Non Executive and Independent Director 
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Attendance: 
Sl. No. Date of Meeting Total Members Attendance by Members 

1. 13th November, 2021 3 2 

4. General Body Meetings: 

Details of location, date and timing of last 3 years Annual General Meetings are as under: 
 
Annual General Meeting: 
 
Financi
al Year 

 

Venue Date Day Timing Special 
Resolution 
Passed 

2018-19 At the registered office of 
the Company 

27.09.2019 Friday 11.00A.M Yes 

2019-20 At the registered office of 
the Company 

29.09.2020 Tuesday 11:00 A.M Yes 

2020-21 At the registered office of 
the Company 

29.09.2021 Wednesday 11:30 A.M No 

 
Extra-ordinary General Meeting: 
 
There is no extra Extra-ordinary General meeting held during the year ended 31st March 2022. 
 

5. Disclosures:    
 
Disclosure regarding materially significant related party transactions: 
 
There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with its 
promoters, Directors or the management, their relatives conflicting with company’s interests. 

 
Disclosure of non-compliance by the company: 
 
No penalty or strictures have been imposed on the company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any 
statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years. 

 
Disclosures regarding appointment/ re-appointment of Directors: 

 

Pursuant to the Article of Association of the company, Mrs. Annapurna Dash, shall retire and be 
eligible re- appointment as director.  

6. Non-mandatory Requirements: 
 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Regulation 27(2) of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 relating to corporate 
Governance. 

 
During the financial year 2021-22 there is no audit qualification in the Company’s financial 
statements. The company will continue to adopt best practices to ensure the regime of 
unqualified financial Statements. 
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7. Means of Communication: 

 
The audited and Un-audited Financial Results of the Company are published in Orissa post (in 
English) and Dinalipi (in Oriya). 

 
The quarterly Shareholding Pattern and Corporate Governance Report of the Company are filed 
with BSE through BSE Online Portal.  

 
8. General Shareholders Information: 

 
Annual General Meeting: 

 
The 33rd Annual General Meeting (“the AGM”) of the company will be held on Wednesday, 
28th September 2022 at 11:30 A.M. at the Registered office of the Company. 
 
Dates of Book Closure: 

 
The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
Wednesday, 22nd September 2022 to Wednesday, 28th September 2022, (both days 
inclusive) for purpose of the Annual General Meeting for the year. 

 
9. Financial Calendar for the year : 

The Company follows 1stApril to 31st March as its financial year.  

10. Listing on Stock Exchanges: 
 

The Company’s shares are presently listed only at BSE Limited. 
The Scrip Code is ‘519604’. 

The ISIN Number of the company in CDSL & NSDL is INE565E01016. 

11. CIN Number: 
  

 The Corporate Identity Number (“CIN”) of the company, as allotted by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs is L05004OR1989PLC002264. 
 

12. Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: 
 

All share transmission, transposition and related operations are conducted by the Registrar and 
Share transfer Agent of the company both in physical and dematerialized form Address of RTA: 

 
Niche Technologies Private Limited,  
3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata – 700 017. 

 

13.  Share Transfer Systems: 
 

Shares received for transfer/transmission in the physical form are processed and the share 
certificates returned within time, as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, from the date of the receipt subject to the documents being 
complete and valid in all respects.   
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However, as per SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and 
further amended vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 
2018, requests for effecting transfer of securities (except in case of transmission or transposition 
of securities) shall not be processed from April 1, 2019, unless the securities are held in the 
dematerialized form with the depositories. Therefore, Shareholders are requested to take action 
to dematerialize the Equity Shares of the Company, promptly. 
 

14. Stock Market Data on BSE: Market price data: High/low, Volume of shares during each 
month in the last financial year: 

 

 

15.  Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2022:  
 

 The details of distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2022 is as under: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

No. of Shares No. of 
Holders 

% to Total Total Shares % to Total 

1 1-500 6774 96.4682 8,20,178 20.7116 
2 501-1,000 132 1.8798 1,06,313 2.6847 
3 1,001-5,000 85 1.2105 2,05,863 5.1986 
4 5,001-10,000 10 0.1424 88,094 2.2246 
5 10,001-50,000 12 0.1709 2,87,960 7.2717 
6 50,001-1,00,000 5 0.0712 4,52,512 11.4271 
7 1,00,001-And Above 4 0.0570 19,99,080 50.4818 

 Totals 7022 100.0000 39,60,000 100.0000 
  

16. Shares held in physical and dematerialized form: 
 

As on 31stMarch, 2022the status of Physical and dematerialized shares are as follows: 
 
Description No of Shares % of Shares Capital 

 
Issued Capital 39, 60,000 100.00 

Month High Low Volume 

Apr-21 4.53 4 1161 
May-21 5.91 3.82 3355 
Jun-21 9.29 5.7 12248 
Jul-21 11.22 9.54 6490 
Aug-21 9.54 6.04 2774 
Sep-21 6.35 5.7 2068 
Oct-21 5.85 5.2 2458 
Nov-21 7.35 5.1 8282 
Dec-21 9.29 7.35 13010 
Jan-22 10.67 8.78 26061 
Feb-22 9.5 7.98 5846 
Mar-22 9.67 8.55 7113 
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Listed Capital 39, 60,000 100.00 
Held in dematerialized form in CDSL 1,98,784 5.02 
Held in dematerialized form in NSDL 23,91,596 60.39 
Physical 13,69,620 34.59 

 
 

17. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2022: 
 
Category 
 

No of Shares % of Shares Capital 

Indian Promoters 20,49,080 51.744 
Mutual Funds & UTI 81,800 2.066 
Banks Financial Institutions & 
Insurance Company 87,000 2.197 

Private Corporate Bodies & Others 2,38,762 6.03 
General Public 15,03,358 37.96 
Total 39,60,000 100.000 

 
18. GDRs/ADRs/Warrants: 

 The Company has not issued any GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible instruments. 
 
Details of Shareholdings of Promoter & Promoter Group holding 1% or more of the 
total number of shares as on 31st March, 2022: 
 
Name of Shareholders No of Shares 

held 
% of 

Shareholdin
g 

H.S.Sandhu 50,000 1.263 

Amarendra Dash   1,23,300 3.114 

SuryoUdyog Limited 5,75,280 14.527 

Suryo Financial Services Limited 6,93,300         17.508 

Suryo Investment and Transport Limited 6,07,200 15.333 

Total 20,49,080 51.745 
 

19.  Details of Shareholdings of Public holding 1% or more of the total number of shares 
as on 31st March, 2022: 

 
Name of Shareholders No of Shares 

held 
% of 

shareholding 
Credit Capital Investment Trust Co. Limited 77,700 1.962 
PNB Redeemed Schemes 81,000 2.045 
Unisys Softwares And Holding Industries 50,000 1.263 
Primco Financial Services (P) Limited 93,812 2.369 
Ishan Mohan 1,00,000 2.525 
Tani S Bhargav 1,00,000 2.525 

Total 5,02,512 12.689 
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20.    Address for Correspondence: 
  
Any query relating to shares and requests for transactions such as transfer, transmission and 
nomination facilities, duplicate share certificates, change of address, non-receipt dividend/ 
Annual Report, as also regarding dematerialization of shares may please taken up with. 
Sd/- 
Compliance officer 
 
Address: 
Suryo Foods & Industries Limited 
DinalipiBhawan, A -54/1 & A -55/1, Nayapalli 
Baramunda, Bhubaneswar – 751003 (Odisha) 
Ph. No:  0674-2564773/0674-2563832 
Fax No: 0674-2562083 
Email: suryofoods.industries@gmail.com 
Website:http://www.suryofoods.com 

 

DECLARATION 

I, Mr. Amarendra Dash, Chairman cum Managing Director of Suryo Foods & Industries 

Limited, hereby declare that all the members of the board of Directors and the Senior 

Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct, for the year ended 

31st March, 2022.                                      

   

For and on behalf of the Board 

 
 
 
                    Sd/- 

Place: Bhubaneswar                                                                     Amarendra Dash 
Date:  10.08.2022  Chairman cum Managing Director  

                                                                             DIN:00583036 
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION 

 
To 
The Board of Directors 
Suryo Foods & Industries Limited 
Dinalipi, A-54/1 & A-55-1, Nayapalli, 
Bhubaneswar, Odisha- 751003 
 
Sub: Certification under Regulation 33(2)(a) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 for 
the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022. 
 
We, Mr. Amarendra Dash, Managing Director and Mr. Bikash Kumar Sahoo, Chief Financial 
Officer of Suryo Foods & Industries Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that: 
 
1. We have reviewed the Annual Audited Financial Results of the Company. 

 
a) These Annual Audited Financial Results do not contain any materially untrue statement 

or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading: 
 

b) These Annual Audited Financial Results together present a true and fair view of the 
listed entity’s affair and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, 
applicable laws and regulations. 

 
2.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year ended 31st March, 2022 that are fraudulent, illegal or violate of 
the Company’s Code of Conduct.  

 
3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control over financial 

reporting and evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 
pertaining to financial reporting and they have discussed to the auditors and the audit 
committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we 
are aware and the steps have been taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies: 

 
a) That there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during 

the year; 
 

b) That there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year subject to 
change in the same  and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements; and  

 
c) That there are no instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and 

the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant 
role in the Company’s internal control system over Financial Reporting. 

 
 

 
Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date: 28.05.2022 

Sd/- 
Amarendra Dash 

Chairman cum Managing Director 

Sd/- 
Bikash Kumar Sahoo 

Chief Financial Officer 
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AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To 

The Members, 
Suryo Foods & Industries Limited. 
3rd Floor, A-54/1 & A-55/1, Nayapalli 
Bhubaneswar, Odisha-751013. 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Suryo Foods & 
Industries Limited for the year ended on 31stMarch 2022, as stipulated in Regulation 27(2) of 
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,2015 of the said Company 
with the stock exchanges. 

Compliancewith the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementations thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. 
It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the 
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-
mentioned Listing Regulation. 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.  

 

 For SANJIT MOHANTY & CO 
Chartered Accountants 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date: 10.08.2022 

                                                                                 Sd/- 
Sanjit Kumar Mohanty, F.C.A. 

            Membership No. 069927 
                                                                                               Partner 
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ANNEXURE “B” 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR  

 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014] 

 
To 
The Members, 
Suryo Foods &Industries Limited, 
A-54/1 & A-55/1, Nayapalli, Baramunda, 
Bhubaneswar, Odisha-751003. 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Suryo Foods & 
Industries Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) for the financial year ended 
31st March 2022. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board processes and compliance  mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by Suryo Foods & Industries Limited for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2022, according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), and the Rules made there under; 

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made 

there under; 
 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there 

under; 
 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable during the 
period under report) 
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992(‘SEBI Act’):- 
 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period); 
 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period); 
 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period); 

 
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 

Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during 
the Audit Period); 
 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client; 

 
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period); 

 
i.   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 

Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period); 

 
(vi) Apart from the other statutory laws applicable to the day to day business of the 

Company, following are the industry specific laws which are also applicable to 
the Company: 
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Industry Specific Applicable Laws: 

 
 The Marine Products Export Development Authority (MPEDA Act). 
 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India (ICSI). 

 
(ii) The Uniform Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the BSE 

Limited. 
 

During the period under review, as per the explanations and clarifications given to us 
by the management, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above. 
 
We further report that 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 
 
For all the Board meetings, adequate notice was given to all Directors. Agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 7 days in advance and the Company has a 
system for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items placed before the meetings for the meaningful participation at the meetings. 
 
We further report that all the decisions of the Board is carried through unanimously 
and recorded the same in the minutes and there are adequate systems and processes 
in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor 
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines 
 
 

For Saroj Ray & Associates 
        Company Secretaries  
      
                                                                                                   SD/- 
Place: Bhubaneswar     CS Ganeshwar Pradhan, ACS 
Date: 27.05.2022        Partner 

 M No. 57684, CP No. 24284 
           UDIN: A057684D000403150 

 
 
 

(This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A 
and forms an integral part of this report) 
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Annexure A 

 
To 
The Members, 
Suryo Foods &Industries Limited, 
A-54/1 & A-55/1, Nayapalli, Baramunda, 
Bhubaneswar, Odisha-751003. 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial 
records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the 
Secretarial records. The verifications were done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes 
and practices, followed by the Company provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records 
and Books of Accounts of the company. 
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 
was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 
 

For Saroj Ray & Associates 
        Company Secretaries  
      
          SD/- 
Place: Bhubaneswar     CS Ganeshwar Pradhan, ACS 
Date: 27.05.2022        Partner 

 M No. 57684, CP No. 24284 
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ANNEXURE “C” 

Secretarial Compliance Report of Suryo Foods and Industries Limited for the 
year ended 31st March, 2022. 

We, M/s. Saroj Ray & Associates have examined:  

(a)  all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided 
by Suryo Foods and Industries Limited (“the listed entity”),  

(b)  the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,  
(c)  website of the listed entity,  

for the year ended 31st March, 2022 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the 
provisions of :  

(a)  the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the 
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and  

(b)  the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made 
thereunder and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);  

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued 
thereunder, have been examined, include:-  

(a)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;  

(b)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the reporting 
period) 

(c)  The Securities Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers Regulation, 2011((Not applicable during the reporting period) 

(c)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993; 

(d)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015;  

and circulars/ guidelines issued there under and based on the above examination, we 
hereby report that, during the Review Period: 

(a)  The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and 
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified 
below:-  

Sr.No Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ circulars / 
guidelines including 
specific clause) 

Deviations Observations/ 
Remarks of the 
Practicing 
Company 
Secretary 

- - - - 
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(b)  The Listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the 
above Regulations and circulars /guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it 
appears from our examinations of those records. 

(c) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/its 
promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock 
Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI 
through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/Regulations   and 
Circulars/guidelines issued there under. 

Sl 
No 

Actions Taken 
By 

Details of 
Violation 

Details of Action 
Taken E.g. fines, 
warning Letter, 
debarment etc. 

Observations/Remarks 
of the Practicing 
Company Secretary, if 
any 

- - - - - 
 

(d)  The Listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the 
observations made in previous reports. 

Sl 
No 

Observations of 
the Practicing 
Company 
Secretary in the 
Previous 
Reports 

Observations 
made in the 
Secretarial 
Compliance 
Report for the 
Year ended 31-
03-2022 

Actions 
Taken By the 
Listed entity 
,if Any 

Comments of the 
Practicing 
Company 
Secretary on the 
actions taken by 
the Listed Entity 

- - - - - 
 

 

 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date: 27/05/2022 
 

Signature: SD/- 
Name of the Practicing  
Company Secretary:  
CS Ganeshwar Pradhan 
ACS: 57684, CP: 24284 
UDIN:  A057684D000403238 
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ANNEXURE-D 

Form No. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 

 
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to during the year ended 
31st March, 2022, which were not arm's length basis. 
 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length 

basis: 
 

Name of 
related 
party 

Nature of 
relationship 

Duration of 
Contract/ 
Arrangeme
nts/ 
Transaction 

Salient terms 
of the 
Contract/ 
Arrangements/ 
Transaction 
including 
value, if any 

Date of 
Approval 
by the 
Board 

Amount 
paid as 
Advance
s 

Ram’s 
Assorted 
Cold Storage 
Limited 

Key Managerial 
Persons are 
common 

Continues Lease Rent 
received 

30.06.2021 - 

For Suryo Foods and Industries Limited 
 

Sd/- 
Amarendra Dash 

Chairman cum Managing Director 
DIN:00583036 

  
Date: 10.08.2022 
Place; Bhubaneswar 
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ANNEXURE “E” 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Forward-Looking Statements: 

Statements in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” describing the Company’s objective, 

projections, estimates, and expectations may be “forward-looking statements” within the 

meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those 

expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s 

operations include global and Indian demand-supply conditions, changes in the government 

regulations, tax regimes, economic developments within India and the countries within which 

the company conducts business and other factors such as litigation and labor relations. 
 

Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future 

events. The company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or 

will be realized. The Company’s actual results, performance, or achievements could thus differ 

materially from those projected in any such forward-looking statements. The Company assumes 

no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statements, on the 

basis of any subsequent developments, information, or events. 
 

Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy: 

The philosophy we have with regard to internal control systems and their adequacy has been the 

formulation of effective systems and their strict implementation to ensure that assets and 

interest of the company are safeguarded; checks and balances are in place to determine the 

accuracy and reliability of accounting data. 
 

The Internal Audit, an independent appraisal function to examine and evaluate the adequacy 

and effectiveness of the internal controls system, appraises periodically about activities and 

audit findings to the audit committee, statutory auditors and the top management. 

Internal Audit ensures that systems are designed and implemented with adequate internal 

controls commensurate with the size and operations; transactions are executed and assets are 

safeguarded and deployed in accordance with the policies; existence of adequacy of internal 

controls in all existing policies and procedures. 
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The Audit Committee of the board consisting of majority of the members independent and non-

executives directors. It investigates any matter relating to the internal control systems and 

reviews the Internal Audit. The Committee also reviews the quarterly and half- yearly financial 

report before they are submitted to the Board of Directors. 
 

Human Resources 

Your Company’s industrial relations continued to be harmonious during the year under review. 

This year company could able to achieve an excellent performance due to continuous efforts 

taken by the employees at every stage of operation and maintenance by introduction of modern 

techniques and integration of efforts. Every area of work is taken care of with standard operating 

procedures, checklists, inspection schedules, and other related studies. 
 

Conclusion 

The performance of the company is very poor since so many years due to heavy financial 

burden. Company is planning to diversify the business activity and enhance the return of 

shareholders in the coming years.   

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 
Sd/- 

Amarendra Dash 
Chairman cum Managing Director 

DIN:00583036 
 

 

 
 
 

Place: Bhubaneswar                                 
Date:  10.08.2022    
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
To the Members of  
Suryo Foods and Industries Limited, Bhubaneswar  
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the financial statements of Suryo Foods and Industries Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity 
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2022, and its 
Loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows and the for the year 
ended on that date.  
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit of the financial statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI’’) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.  
 
Key Audit Matters  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significant 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that 
there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report except that there is no revenue 
from operations during the reported financial year. 
 
Other Information  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Directors Report and Corporate 
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Governance Report but does not include the financial statements, consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act,read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance 
of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process.  
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  
 
• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.  
 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  
 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.  
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22                                                      SURYO FOODS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 Page 46 
 

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 
 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books.  

 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”. 

 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its financial statements.  
 

ii. Provision has been made in the financial statements as required under the applicable law 
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts 
including derivative contracts 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, (‘the Order’) issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  

 
 
 

For SANJIT MOHANTY & CO. 
Charted Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 328858E 
Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date: 28.05.2022                                                                                                 Sd/- 
 
                                                                                                              SANJIT KUMAR MOHANTY 

Partner 
Membership No. 069927 

UDIN: 22069927AJUAMH2769 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report  
 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report to the Members of Suryo Foods and Industries Limited the Company of even 
date)  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Suryo Foods and 
Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of 
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  
Auditor’s Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.  
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting. 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.  
Opinion  
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

 
For SANJIT MOHANTY & CO. 

Charted Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 328858E 

 
                                                                                                            Sd/- 

 
SANJIT KUMAR MOHANTY 

Partner 
Membership No. 069927 

UDIN:22069927AJUAMH2769  
 
 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date: 28.05.2022 
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Annexure-B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Annexurereferred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the standalone 

financial statements as at end for the year ended 31st March 2022 of Suryo Foods and 

Industries Limited. 

 

1. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

(a) (1)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipments.  

(2) The company is not having any intangible asset. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 

(i)(a)(B) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company. 

 (b) A major portion of Property Plant & Equipments have been physically verified by the 

Management in accordance with a phased programme of verification adopted by the 

company, which, in our opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable. To the best 

of our knowledge, no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. 

 (c) According to the information and explanation and the records provided to us, we 

report that all title deeds of immovable properties of the company held as Property, Plant 

& Equipments are held in the name of the company. However, we express no opinion on 

the validity of the title of the company to these properties. 

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year 

hence Clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding 

any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 

and rules made there under hence Clause (i)(e) of paragraph 3 of the order are not 

applicable to the company. 

 2.  (a)There are No Inventories held by the company hence reporting under the respective 

clause is not applicable. 

(b)The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from banks & financial 

institutions on the basis of security of current assets hence reporting under the respective 

clause is not applicable. 
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3.The Company has not made any investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships, or granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, reporting under 

the respective clause is not applicable. 

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the 

nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 

or any other parties. 

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. 

Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

6. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under 

sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried 

out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company. 

7. (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular 

in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State 

Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Value added Tax, Cess and any other 

statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and 

explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in 

arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date on when 

they become payable.  

 b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income 

tax, Goods and Service Tax &, value added tax outstanding on account of any dispute. 

8. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).  

9. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not defaulted in the repayment of Principal and Interest dues to banks & 

Other Financial Institutions.  

10. (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 

given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public 
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offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the 

provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 

commented upon.  

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 

reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

11. a)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 

by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its 

officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.  

(b)No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in 

Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 

with the Central Government, during the year. 

(c) The company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the year. 

 

12 In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 

(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  

 

13 In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 

and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 

Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.  

 

14 (a)In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size 

and nature of its business.  

 (b) Internal Audit ReportReport was made available to us and was taken into account at 

the time of our audit. 

 

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 

by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 

directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.  
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16. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

(b)In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in 

the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly 

reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

17. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 12,46,000 /- during the financial year 

covered by our audit and of Rs.50,56,000 /- during the immediately preceding financial 

year. 

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

19. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 

statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 

on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 

the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 

the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 

viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 

date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 

liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

20.There are No CSR Liabilities arising for the Company during year, hence reporting 

under the respective clause is not applicable. 

 

For SANJIT MOHANTY & CO. 
Charted Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 328858E 
 

                                                                                                          Sd/- 
 

SANJIT KUMAR MOHANTY 
Partner 

Membership No. 069927 
UDIN: 22069927AJUAMH2769 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date: 28.05.2022 
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